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 Statewide Financial System (SFS) 
 Solicitation: Data Warehousing Strategic Consulting Services 

 
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 3/26/2020 

 
 

The official responses to questions submitted pursuant to the schedule in the above-
captioned solicitation are listed below. Responses are in bold blue type. 
 
1. What will be the mode of interview? 

 
Response: SFS will consider the best approach for conducting interviews 
(either in person or remotely through Webex, Skype, or phone) based on the 
current situation with COVID-19. Finalists will be notified in advance regarding 
the mode of interview.  
 

2. Is there any incumbent in place? If yes, what who and what was the historical 
spend? 

 

Response: There is no incumbent. 
 
3. What is the budget for project? 
 

Response: SFS does not disclose the budgets for its procurements so as to 
encourage competition and better pricing. 
 

4. Are all the six (6) qualification criteria’s are minimum requirements or any of the 
criteria is preferred? 

 
Response: None of the six (6) qualifications in the Consultant Qualification 
Form are considered minimum requirements, however candidates with the most 
depth and breadth of experience with the qualifications will score more 
favorably in the evaluation. 
 

5. Can an exemption be made to use our firm that is not a protected status firm? 
 
Response: Per the solicitation, this procurement opportunity is limited to the 
following types of firms: 
 

- New York State small businesses as defined in State Finance Law § 
160(8) 

- Businesses certified pursuant to Article 15-A of the New York State 
Executive Law (MWBE) 

- Businesses certified pursuant to Article 17-A of the New York State 
Executive Law (SDVOB) 
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6. Can you specify the total number of hours (Daily/Weekly/Monthly) that the consultant 
needs to work? 

 
Response: It is expected that the consultant will work between 25 and 40 hours 
per week.  Adjustments to this schedule will be at the sole discretion of SFS. 
 

7. After phase 2 do you expect any additional consultant to work from onsite or from 
near/offshore location? 

 
Response: It is expected that the selected vendor’s proposed consultant will 
provide the vast majority, if not all, of the services as described in this 
solicitation on-site at our offices in Albany, NY through all three phases.  Any 
remote work must be performed in the United States and is subject to the prior 
approval of SFS.   No additional consultants are expected to be needed after 
phase 2.  
 

8. Is the assigned consultant alone responsible to complete all three phases? 
 
Response: It is expected that the consultant named in the proposal will 
complete all three phases of the services described in the solicitation, working 
in conjunction with SFS leadership and reporting team members.  
 

9. After phases 1 & 2, can the firm be able to change/swap the consultant? 
 

Response: No, it is expected that the consultant named in the proposal will 
complete all three phases of the services described in the solicitation. 
 

10. Is Data Warehouse infrastructure already in place or this would need to be 
implemented? 

 
Response: A data warehouse infrastructure is currently in place. SFS uses 
Oracle Bi Applications for that warehouse. 
 

11. How many data tables need to be included in the Data Warehouse? 
 
Response: It is expected that the consultant under this proposal will assess the 
current implementation and would make recommendations if other data tables 
would provide value.  
 

12. How many sources of data will feed into the data warehouse? 
 
Response: Currently, the SFS data warehouse is sourced by a single instance 
of an SFS Oracle PeopleSoft Financials ERP. This feed is expected to continue. 
Recommendations of additional feeds may be part of the advice provided under 
this engagement. 
 

13. Will data migration be needed? 
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Response: It is expected that the consultant under this engagement will make 
recommendations if new data elements would add value and on how best to 
migrate, but the actual migration will be handled by the SFS team. 
 

14. Will data cleansing and data scrubbing need to be implemented? 
 
Response: It is expected that the consultant under this engagement will make 
recommendations on best practices and assist with procedures on data cleansing 
and scrubbing. We expect that data owners will have responsibility for providing 
clean and useable data. We would look for recommendations on how best to 
transform the data that may be received. 
 
15. What are the current connection mechanisms between systems? ETL? 

 
Response: SFS uses Oracle Data Integrator as the ETL. A direct database 
connection exists between the Oracle PeopleSoft Financials data source and 
the Oracle Bi Application. 
 

16. How many dashboards would need to be developed? How many reports would need 
to be developed? 

 
Response: It is expected that the consultant under this engagement will make 
recommendations on the need for dashboards and reports and how they might 
be build to gain the greatest value. The build would be done by SFS staff.   

 
17. Are the current systems on premise or in the cloud? 
 

Response: The current systems are on premise and are managed by SFS staff. 
 


